
 

 

 
 
Notice of Meeting of 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
Monday, 15 May 2023 at 12.00 pm 
(Please note new start time) 

 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Cannards 
Grave Road, Shepton Mallet BA4 5BT 
 
To: The members of the Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Chair:    Councillor Simon Carswell 
  
Councillor Tony Lock Councillor Connor Payne Councillor Brian Smedley 
 

 
For further information about the meeting, including how to join the meeting virtually, 
please contact Democratic Services democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk. 
 
All members of the public are welcome to attend our meetings and ask questions or 
make a statement by giving advance notice in writing or by e-mail to the Monitoring 
Officer at email: democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk by 5pm on Tuesday, 9 
May 2023. 
 
This meeting will be open to the public and press, subject to the passing of any 
resolution under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A: Access to Information.  
 
The meeting will be webcast and an audio recording made. 
 
Issued by Scott Wooldridge on Thursday, 4 May 2023 

Public Agenda Pack

mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 12.00 pm Monday, 15 May 2023 
  
Public Guidance Notes contained in Agenda Annexe  
 

3 - 4 

 
Click here to join the online meeting  
 

5 - 6 

 
1   Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

  
2   Declarations of Interest  

 
To receive and note any declarations of disclosable pecuniary or prejudicial or 
personal interests in respect of any matters included on the agenda for 
consideration at this meeting.  
  
(The personal interests of Councillors of Somerset Council, Town or Parish Councils 
and other Local Authorities will automatically be recorded in the minutes.) 
  

3   Procedure to be followed when considering Licensing Applications under the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
The Chair will confirm the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
  

4   Objection Notice received in respect of a variation to a premises licence for 
French General Trading, 2A Church Street, Frome, BA11 1PW. 
  
The Police and the applicant have been able to agree conditions that satisfies both 
parties, therefore this premises license application has been withdrawn from the 
agenda.  
  

5   Objection Notice received in respect of an application for a premises licence 
for The Sheep & Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ (Pages 11 - 62) 
 
To inform Members that an application for a premises licence for The Sheep & 
Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ was submitted under the Licensing Act 
2003. 
  



Page 3

Agenda Annex

mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s174/Part%20H2%20-%20Members%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk


Page 4



Microsoft Teams meeting  
Join on your computer, mobile app or room device  
Click here to join the meeting  
Meeting ID: 333 432 528 79  
Passcode: kpfu9u  
Download Teams | Join on the web 
Or call in (audio only)  
+44 1823 772277,,94575184#   United Kingdom, Taunton  
Phone Conference ID: 945 751 84#  
Find a local number | Reset PIN  
Learn More | Meeting options  
________________________________________________________________________________  
  
 

Page 5

Agenda Annex

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YmIzOTBmZmItNmVmNi00YmRiLThkMTYtYTMwNTJkMjU3NTIz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22b524f606-f77a-4aa2-8da2-fe70343b0cce%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22be753587-8c25-44a0-8666-6f585f83d52c%22%7d
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app
https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting
tel:+441823772277,,94575184#
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/4e217883-910c-4f2a-a890-19f4d750e93c?id=94575184
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing
https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=be753587-8c25-44a0-8666-6f585f83d52c&tenantId=b524f606-f77a-4aa2-8da2-fe70343b0cce&threadId=19_meeting_YmIzOTBmZmItNmVmNi00YmRiLThkMTYtYTMwNTJkMjU3NTIz@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US


This page is intentionally left blank



Procedure to be followed when considering Licensing Applications 
under the Licensing Act 2003 

 
 

1. The Chair will open the Hearing and introduce the Sub-Committee and Officers. They 
will then ask each Party to introduce themselves.  

2. The Chair will confirm that if a Party is not present their representation/application will 
be read and taken in to account in reaching the decision.  

3. The Chair will address any registerable interest arising under the Code of Conduct.  

 

4. The Chair will consider any submitted requests from a Party for permission for another 

person to appear at the Hearing. If necessary, the Sub-Committee will retire to 

deliberate before making a decision.  

 

5. The Chair will confirm that the Hearing will take the form of a round-the-table 

discussion led by the Sub-Committee in accordance with this procedure. If all Parties 

present confirm that they have seen and understood the procedure to be followed at 

the Hearing and agree that they are ready to proceed then the Hearing shall 

commence.  

6. The Chair will remind everyone that the purpose of the Hearing should be borne in 
mind at all times i.e.  

To enable those with a right to appear, to amplify their written application or 
representation. It is also to assist the Sub-Committee to gather evidence and 
understand the relevant issues.  

 
7. The Chair will confirm what advance papers have been received and that these have 

been read.  
 

8. The Chair will make clear that all Parties should only address the Sub-Committee in 
relation to matters they have raised in their application/representation. Any Party 
wishing to submit late evidence at the Hearing will only be able to do so with the 
consent of all Parties present and with the consent of the Sub-Committee.  

 
9. The Chair will confirm whether all Parties have seen and understood the procedure to 

be followed and are ready to proceed with the Hearing.  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



10. The Chair will ask the Applicant whether they wish to make any amendments to their 
application with a view to addressing any issues raised by representations.  

 
11. Order of Oral Presentation  

 
(a) The Licensing Officer will present their report outlining the details of the 

application/notice/representations received.  

(b) Any Party may question the Licensing Officer.  

(c) The Members may question the Licensing Officer.  

(d) Responsible Authorities will present their case and call any witnesses.  

(e) Any Party may question the Responsible Authorities and any witnesses.  

(f) Members may question the Responsible Authorities and any witnesses.  

(g) Other Person(s) will present their case in turn and call any witnesses.  

(h) Any Party may question the Other Person(s).  

(i) Members may question the Other Person(s).  

(j) The Applicant/Licence Holder will present their case and call any witnesses.  

(k) Any Party may question the Applicant/Licence Holder and any witnesses.  

(l) Members may question the Applicant/Licence Holder and any witnesses.  

 
The Chair at their discretion, may change the order of oral presentation at any stage, if 
it is considered to be beneficial to the flow of the hearing.  

 
12. Before moving on to the next Party, the Chair will check there are no further points the 

current Party wishes to make or any further questions that need to be put to that Party.  
 

13. The Licensing Officer may present any further information such as proposed non-
mandatory Conditions deriving from the Operating Schedule or suggested by any 
Party. However, it will remain for the Sub-Committee to determine what conditions will 
apply, if any, should the application be successful.  

 
14. Each Party will be invited to make closing submissions in the following order –  

a. Responsible Authorities  

b. Other Persons  

c. The Applicant  

d. Licensing Officer  

Page 8



 
15. The Chair will then close the Hearing and the Sub-Committee will retire to determine 

the matter. The Legal Advisor will retire with the Sub-Committee to answer any points 
of law.  

 
16. The Sub-Committee will come to a decision which will be sent to the Applicant and all 

other relevant Parties together with the details of the right to appeal.  
 
NOTE:  
In producing this procedure the following has been considered: -  
The relevant legislation and statutory guidance together with local policies and procedures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Decision Report – Regulatory Decision 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Objections received in respect of an application for a premises 
licence for The Sheep & Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 
2DZ. 
 
Executive Member(s): Cllr Federica Smith-Roberts 
Local Member(s) and Division: Cllr Simon Carswell – Chair Licensing & Regulatory 
Sub-Committee 
Lead Officer: Phil Wake – Licensing and Business Support Officer  
Author: Phil Wake  
Contact Details: phil.wake@somerset.gov.uk 
 
Summary / Background 
 
1. To inform members that an application for a premises licence was submitted 

under the Licensing Act 2003. The application can be seen at Appendix 1, a 
plan of the premises can be seen at Appendix 2. 
 

2. The application is for the sale by retail of alcohol, 09:00 – 00:00 7 days a week. 
The opening hours applied for are 09:00 – 01:00 7 days a week.   

 

3. An objection has been duly served by Nicola King on behalf of the Chief of 
Police for Avon and Somerset Constabulary. The objection can be seen in 
Appendix 3. There are also 5 objections from members of the public, they can 
be seen at the following appendices: 

 
• Rosalynde Marshall – Appendix 4 
• Ina Cola – Appendix 5 
• John Devane – Appendix 6 
• Antoinette Jordan – Appendix 7 
• Brian and Jayne Doutch – Appendix 8 

 
Recommendations 
  
4.  The Licensing Sub-Committee must decide to do one of the following: 
 

• To grant the application as applied for 
 

• To grant the application with conditions  
 
• To refuse the application  

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 
 
Reasons for recommendations 
 
5.  There is statutory duty to consider the options above. 
 
6.     In determining an application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives 

in the overall interests of the community, the Sub Committee must have regard 
to and give appropriate weight to the following considerations:  

 
• Any objection (including supporting documentation received)  
• Guidance issued under s182 of the Act  
• The Mendip Statement of Licensing Policy published in January 2021  
• The steps necessary to promote the licensing objectives  
• Human Rights considerations in particular Article 6, Article 8 and Article 1 

of Protocol 1  
 
7. The licensing objectives are to be considered paramount and the Council has a 

duty to promote them in its decision-making process. The licensing objectives 
are: 

  
• Prevention of crime and disorder  
• Public safety  
• Prevention of public nuisance  
• Protection of children from harm  

 
Other options considered 
 
8.   Not applicable. 
 
Links to Council Vision, Business Plan and Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
 
9.  The Council must carry out its functions in accordance with the Licensing Act 

2003 with a view to promoting the licensing objectives and this remains the prime 
consideration of this report. 

 
Financial and Risk Implications 
 
10. There are no financial implications. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
11.  The Licensing and Business Support Officer has determined that the 

representations submitted by Avon and Somerset Constabulary and members of 
the public are relevant. It is, therefore, the duty of the Sub-Committee to 
determine the application with regards to the licensing objectives. The issue for 
the Sub-Committee is whether or not the application undermines the licensing 
objectives as claimed by the representations. 

 

Page 12



12.  All parties are entitled to appeal the decision of the Sub-Committee. Any appeal 
must be made to the Magistrate’s Court within 21 days of the decision notice.  

HR Implications 
 
13.  None.  
 
Other Implications 
 
14. None. 
 
Equalities Implications 
 
15.  None.  
 
Community Safety Implications  
 
16.  None. 
 
Climate Change and Sustainability Implications  
 
17.  None. 
 
Health and Safety Implications 
 
18.  None. 
 
Health and Wellbeing Implications  
 
19. None. 

 
Social Value 
 
20.  The contents of the report do not relate to a procurement process, therefore there 

are no social value implications. 
 
Scrutiny comments / recommendations 
 
21.  This report relates to a statutory function of the Council, which is the responsibility 

of the Licensing & Regulatory Committee (delegated to a Sub-Committee), so 
there are no scrutiny comments or recommendations to make. 

 
Background 
 
22.   An application for the grant of a premises licence was received by the Authority 

on 24th March 2023. The consultation period had to be restarted due to the site 
notice not being displayed, therefore the consultation period ended on the 1st 
May 2023. 
The application is for the sale by retail of alcohol 09:00 – 00:00, with opening 
times of 09:00 – 01:00 7 days a week. As the application is for alcohol to be 

Page 13



consumed on the premises, live music and recorded music would be 
deregulated between the hours of 09:00 and 23:00. 
The Authority received 10 objections, 9 made by members of the public and 1 
made by Avon and Somerset Constabulary. 
Through discussions, and a site visit on the 3rd May 2023, 4 members of the 
public withdrew their objections. 6 objections were unable to be resolved during 
the consultation period, therefore the matter is for the Licensing Sub-Committee 
to determine, collectively the objections relate to all 4 Licensing Objectives.   

 
Proposed Activities and Timings 
 
23. The proposed activities and timings are detailed below 
 

Proposed 
Activities 
and Hours 
Day  

Start Time  Finish 
Time  

Licensable activity 
requested  

Nature of 
Premises  

7 days a 
week 

09:00  00:00  The sale by retail of alcohol B&B 
serving 
food with a 
bar area      

   
 
Relevant Observations 
 
24.  At the time of writing this report there have been no agreed conditions. 
 
Further Information  
 
25.  None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
The Licensing Act 2003  
The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) (Regulations) 2005 No. 44  
The Latest Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003  
The Mendip Statement of Licensing Policy published in January 2021 
 
Appendices 
 

• Appendix 1 Application for a Premises Licence to be Granted 
• Appendix 2 Plan of the premises 
• Appendix 3 Objection submitted by the Police 
• Appendix 4 Objection submitted by Rosalynde Marshall 
• Appendix 5 Objection submitted by Ina Cole 
• Appendix 6 Objection submitted by John Devane 
• Appendix 7 Objection submitted by Antoinette Jordan 
• Appendix 8 Objection submitted by Brian and Jayne Doutch 

 

Page 14



 
 
 
Report Sign-Off (if appropriate) (internal use only - not for publication) 
 
 Officer Name Date Completed 
Legal & Governance 
Implications  

Not applicable  

Communications Not applicable  
Finance & Procurement Not applicable  
Workforce Not applicable  
Asset Management Not applicable  
Executive Director / Senior 
Manager 

Not applicable  

Strategy & Performance  Not applicable  
Executive Lead Member Not applicable  
Consulted: Councillor Name  
Local Division Members Not applicable  
Opposition Spokesperson Not applicable  
Scrutiny Chair Not applicable  

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41

APPENDIX 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Representation Form 
 

Responsible Authority. Please delete as applicable. 
Police 
 

Your Name Nicola King 
Job Title Area Licensing Practitioner 
Postal and email address 
 
 

Yeovil Police Station 
Horsey Lane 
Yeovil 
Somerset 
BA20 1SN 

Contact telephone number 101 
 

Name of the premises you are 
making a representation about. 

The Sheep & Penguin 

Address of the premises you are 
making a representation about. 

1-2 Tucker Street 
Wells 
Somerset 
BA5 2DZ 

 

Which of the four licensing 
Objectives does your 
representation relate to? Please 
state yes or no. 

Yes 
Or 
No 

Please detail the evidence supporting your representation. 
Or the reason for your representation. 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

The Prevention of harm to children 
 
 
 

Yes An application has been received for the grant of a new 
premises licence for The Sheep & Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, 
Wells, Somerset BA5 2DZ.    The application is to permit on and 
off sales Monday – Sunday 0900-0000hrs.  
  
On behalf of the Chief Officer of Police we submit our formal 
representation in respect of this application. 
 
Having considered the application and the details provided and 
taking into consideration the promotion of the licensing 
objectives, the police are not satisfied that the current 
conditions put forward by the applicant in the application are 
either sufficient, proportionate, or enforceable, and in their 
current format would not enable the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.   
 
Unfortunately, there has been no prior consultation with the 
police and as a result, we have not been able to furnish the 
applicant with the latest initiatives taking place in the area, 
provide information in respect of Challenge 25, Pub watch, Ask 
Angela and staff training.  Recent communication has taken 
place via email to try and agree conditions with the applicant 
prior to the closing of the consultation period, but due to 
ongoing work commitments this has not be possible.    
Negotiations are currently ongoing and a revised set of 
conditions has been offered to the applicant but as of yet, no 
reply has been received.  
 
The conditions requested are to enable the promotion of the 
licensing objectives especially around the prevention of crime 
and/or disorder, public safety and the protection of children 
from harm.     
 
We have considered the detail provided by the applicant and 

To prevent Public Nuisance 
 
 
 
 

To prevent crime and disorder 
 
 
 
 

Public Safety 
 
 

Page 43

APPENDIX 3



also their similar business operation but without clear 
guidelines and procedures in place, it can risk important 
information not being implemented and recorded.  It also gives 
staff a clear understanding of their responsibilities in assisting 
the premises licence holder with the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.    
 
Until recently Mendip District Council, which has now merged 
with several Councils to become ‘Somerset Council’, outlined in 
their Statement of Licensing Policy measures/recommendations 
for perspective applicants.  As an example Pg 2, point 12 of that 
policy stated the following:- 
 
Applicants for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates 
are strongly recommended to set out, in the Operating 
Schedule, how they will promote the Licensing Objectives and 
what measures they intend to employ to ensure compliance 
with them, in sufficient detail and with specific relevance to 
their application 
 
Whilst we are currently awaiting the revised policy from 
Somerset Council no doubt it will outline to applicants 
something very similar as these measures are imperative in the 
promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 
Conditions should never be viewed as a negative and should be 
seen as a positive approach in working in partnership with 
agencies to promote the licensing objectives which, make our 
towns and cities an enjoyable experience for all wishing to 
experience.    
 
To try and support the applicant with their application and 
ensure that the four licensing objectives are promoted the 
police request the below conditions be considered by the 
applicant and are attached to the premises licence.  This list in 
not exhaustive and is specific to the premises.  
 
If the applicant is not in agreement to the conditions, then 
please accept this as formal notice of the police representation 
to the application and any evidence will be produced prior to 
the hearing.  

 

Suggested conditions that could be added 
to the licence to remedy your 
representation or other suggestions you 
would like the Licensing Sub Committee to 
take into account. Please use separate 
sheets where necessary and refer to 
checklist. 
 

The premises must install and maintain a comprehensive 
surveillance system to the satisfaction of the Police and 
ICO guidelines.    The system must be maintained in full 
working order and record at all times when the premises 
is open for licensable activities.  The correct time & date 
must be generated on all recordings which  must be 
retained for a minimum period of 31 days.   Recorded 
images must be of evidential quality.  Copies must be 
made available on request, to the police or authorised 
officer of the licensing authority.   If the system is 
inoperative or faulty for any reason, steps must be taken 
to repair or replace the equipment within 24 hours.  A 
Data Controller who is conversant with the operation of 
the system must be available at all times when the 
premises is open to the public and be able to provide Page 44



police or authorised officer of the licensing authority 
recent data or footage with the absolute minimum of 
delay when requested.  Management, storage, giving and 
sharing of data recordings must comply with the general 
data protection regulations at all times.    
(The attached document may be helpful and please ensure 
that your system is registered via www.ico.org.uk as 
outlined in the attached document).  
  
An incident register must be kept and maintained to 
record all incidents occurring on the premises or outside 
and associated with the premises.  Records must be made 
available to the Police & Licensing Authority on request 
and records will be kept for at least 12 months. 
 
A refusals register must be kept at each bar and used on 
the premises, to record instances where any sale of 
alcohol and proxy sales to a patron is refused.   This must 
also include refusals to persons who are intoxicated.  
 Records must be kept for a minimum of 12 months and 
must be made available request to the Local Authority, 
Police and Trading Standards Officers upon request. 
 
The premises must operate a “Challenge 25 policy” or 
similar, whereby anyone wishing to purchase alcohol that 
appears to be under the age of 25 years, must be asked to 
provide photographic identification e.g. Passport, driving 
licence, PASS card.     
 
All persons involved in the sale of alcohol must receive 
training on commencement of employment, with regards 
to preventing the sale of alcohol to persons who are under 
the required age and proxy sales.     This training must be 
documented and signed for by employees to acknowledge 
that they have received this training.  All employees must 
receive refresher training every six months.   Records must 
be made available for inspection by the Police & Licensing 
Authority upon request. 

The licence holder must operate a ‘zero tolerance’ policy 
in relation to drugs at the premises and all staff must 
receive training with regards to this policy. Drugs seized by 
staff must be securely stored, until they can be collected 
by the Police. 

No persons shall be allowed in the beer garden after 
2300hrs. 

The premise licence holder shall be an active member of 
any pubwatch or similar scheme that operates within the 
area.  

 
  

N.B If you, as the Responsible Authority, make a representation, a member from your Authority will 
be expected to attend the Licensing Sub Committee and any subsequent appeal proceeding. Page 45

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.ico.org.uk%2F&data=05%7C01%7CNicola.King%40avonandsomerset.police.uk%7Cacd86ab59f40493f17fa08db320669cf%7C2d72816c7e1f41c0a94847a8870ff33a%7C0%7C0%7C638158775343836554%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=bMMcuPHyF1hY4Zp5DAEVKdGWVHowZyr079MNRPKEyeo%3D&reserved=0


 
Signed: N King    Date:      1st May 2023 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets to: Licensing - Somerset Council 

This form must be returned within the Statutory Period.  

Page 46



Page 47



 

Page 48



 

Page 49



Page 50



                   REPRESENTATION FORM 

 
OTHER PERSON (Person/Body)  
 

Your Name/Company Name/Name 
of Body you represent 

 
Ina Cole 
 

Postal and email address 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Contact telephone number 

 

Name of the premises you are 
making a representation about 

Sheep & Penguin Ltd  
 

Address of the premises you 
are making a representation 
about 

 
1 – 2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ 
 
 

  
The recently implemented Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 has removed the 
term ‘interested party’ from the Licensing Act 2003 ‘the Act’, to be replaced by the term Other 
Person.   
 
Other persons 
 
An other person for the purposes of the 2003 Act means the following (as per section 13 of the 
2003 Act):- 

(a) persons who live, or are involved in a business, in the relevant licensing authority’s 

area 

(b) a body representing persons who live in the relevant licensing authority’s area 
 (c) a person involved in a business in the relevant licensing authority’s area 
(d) a body representing persons involved in such businesses, 
(e) a member of the relevant licensing authority. 

 
         Furthermore the ‘vicinity’ test has also been removed from ‘the Act’.  It is for the objector to 

evidence how they would be affected by the presence of the trading of the business in question. 
The terms vicinity and interested persons are still referred to within the Mendip District Council 
Statement of Licensing Policy and should be disregarded.  

  

 
 

 Please detail the approximate distance 
between yourself and the premises applying 
for a licence 
 
 

 

Approx. 40 feet 
(directly opposite the Sheep & Penguin) 
 

Your representation must relate 
to one of the four Licensing 
Objectives.  Please detail 

Please detail the evidence supporting your representation and the 
reason for your representation. 
(Please use separate sheets if necessary) 

TO PREVENT CRIME AND 
DISORDER 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 
 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

TO PREVENT PUBLIC 
NUISANCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
I’m writing to object to the proposed 1am, 7 days a week opening of 
the Sheep & Penguin (with alcohol served to midnight). This is not 
appropriate in a residential area, where family members have to work, 
and children need to sleep. The 1am closing time will inevitably 
encourage anti social behaviour and cause distress to residents.  
 
Please note that the premises were previously The Mermaid, and 
nuisance behaviour included:  
 

 Shouting and swearing late at night, affecting residents of 
Tucker Street, Portway and Portway Avenue; 

 Urinating in the side passage of my property; 

 Litter and bottles in the street and in the side passage of my 
property; 

 Fighting in the road, causing a nuisance to passing cars; 

 Trespassing the Little Theatre premises, and the side passage 
of my property. 

 
Hence, I’m concerned that this will reoccur if the Sheep & Penguin 
remain open to 1am, 7 days a week. It will merely cause customers to 
become inebriated and lose control, which is the inevitable 
consequence of alcohol. In addition, as the Sheep & Penguin wish to 
remain open after other venues in Wells have closed, it could attract 
customers that are already inebriated, and incite them to drink even 
more, which would exacerbate the whole situation. 
 
Other venues in Wells do not have a 1am license. For example, The 
Crown closes at 10.30pm; The King’s Head at 10.30pm (except Sat); 
The Globe at 11pm (except Sat); The City Arms at 11pm; Rose & 
Crown at midnight; and Weatherspoons at midnight (except Fri/Sat). 
It is therefore inappropriate for the Sheep & Penguin to be such an 
anomaly.  
 
 
 

THE PREVENTION OF HARM 
TO CHILDREN 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Suggested conditions that could 
be added to the licence to 
remedy your representation, or 
other suggestions you would 
like the Licensing Sub 
Committee to take into account 

 
The Sheep & Penguin’s opening hours should align to that of other 
venues in Wells, as per the examples given. 
 
I’d also like the committee to consider what plans the Sheep & 
Penguin have in place to mitigate potential nuisance behaviour 
impacting on the residents of the area. 
 

Page 52



Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Phil Wake

From: CHcase
Sent: 02 May 2023 09:20
To: Phil Wake
Subject: FW: 1-2 Tucker Street, Ba52dz.

Sheep and Penguin objection - from resident 
 
India Gill  
Case Officer and Service Support  
Somerset Council  
Contact Number 0300 123 2224 
 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From:   
Sent: 29 April 2023 12:48 
To: Licensing Mendip <licensing@mendip.gov.uk> 
Subject: 1-2 Tucker Street, Ba52dz. 
 

 
 

 
To whom it may concern, 
 
I ‘m writing in regard to the above licence application for the Sheep and Penguin public house. 
 
Although I wish the applicant every success with their business venture. I feel that the  applicant’s  
desire to remain open for 16 hours and  till 1am will have a negative impact on local residents. 
 
From my knowledge, the premises has never had a designated outdoor space. This new space will 
be meters away form residential gardens. Therefore, I would hope that the licensing body will 
consider the impact on residents to the same/greater extent as they did when they reviewed the 
Weatherspoon’s application in Princess Road. Especially considering the difference in distance from 
outdoor spaces to residential development. 
 
Kind Regards, 
 
John Devane 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



 
 
 
 
 

front facing bedrooms.  This was our experience when the Sheep and 
Penguin’s predecessor, ‘The Mermaid’ was operational.  During this 
period, we had a regular traffic of disorderly groups of people 
wandering home at closing time under the influence of drink who 
often loitered in the road in the lower part of Portway nearest the 
Connect Centre end,  or who gathered on the raised pavement 
outside the Connect Centre to drink further and behave anti-socially.  
At this time, many of the residents, as now, were raising young 
families and the frequent occurrence of disturbing anti social 
behaviour was threatening.  
 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Our next nearest provider of alcoholic beverages is Weatherspoons in 
Princes Road.  This establishment is not embedded in a residential 
area as is the Sheep and Penguin and yet customers are not 
permitted to drink in the area outside of the building at the front after 
7pm and their beer garden at the rear of the building closes at 10pm. 
 
In the interests of public safety, as well as the prevention of public 
nuisance and harm to children, and of course the first of your 
categories, ‘the prevention of crime and disorder’, we would like to 
see the licensing permissions brought into line with those of 
Weatherspoons.  The Sheep and Penguin, in fact, is situated on a 
busy junction and its entrance to its housing at the rear of the 
building, together with the entrance/exit gate to the pubs outdoor 
drinking area is down a small road to the side of the pub.  This road is 
concealed from the adjacent main road and also the trajectory of the 
pavement it crosses.  Even without the pub being open at the 
moment, the coming and goings of vehicles from the main road and 
down this side road towards the back of the pub presents a threat to 
public safety due to its invisibility.  With late night drinking, I can only 
imagine that this is going to be exacerbated. 
 
 

TO PREVENT PUBLIC 
NUISANCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
As mentioned above, our next nearest provider of alcoholic 
beverages is Weatherspoons in Princes Road.  This establishment is 
not embedded in a residential area as is the Sheep and Penguin and 
yet customers are not permitted to drink in the area outside of the 
building at the front after 7pm and their beer garden at the rear of the 
building closes at 10pm. It has to be imagined that these hours reflect 
the capacity of patrons to create public nuisance.  With the opening 
hours of mid night and then 1am being requested by The Sheep and 
Penguin, the potential for nuisance noise at these very late hours 
from their small walled courtyard drinking area seems inevitable.  The 
courtyard, although making a private space, will act as an echo 
chamber for merry customers.   
 
The Sheep and Penguin is surrounded by residential housing on each 
side, although to its left, private housing is interrupted by a sequence 
of derelict shops.  To the right, a long terrace of homes houses 
families, including vulnerable groups such as young children, having 
a pub right behind them is difficult enough, without the potential threat 
of opening hours, noise from customers and clearing up extending 
into the small hours.  We know so much about the effects of feeling 
unsafe on the psychological, emotional and neurological development 
of children.  The unruly and unhibited behaviour which drink and in 
particular longer hours of drinking can cause, could potentially really 
damage the wellbeing of not only the young children living yards 
away from this venue and its outdoor space and its departing guests. 
 
 
 

Page 58



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THE PREVENTION OF HARM 
TO CHILDREN 

 
Please see above. 
I can only speak for the lower end of Portway when I say that we 
have several families with young children living in the neighbourhood 
adjacent to the Sheep and Penguin.  Bringing drinking into the 
neighbourhood and in particular drinking late into the night has the 
potential to harm the wellbeing of children in our neighbourhood.  At 
the very least, the noise created by outdoor drinking and by merry 
customers leaving the pub, may not enable them to sleep through the 
night and could easily make them feel threatened.  We frequently 
have people turning out from the night club or city centre pubs who 
shout, loiter and argue at full volume on the street outside our 
bedroom window.  This morning, we had to clean our pavements after 
someone had vomited along the length of our terrace of houses. 
 
I imagine that the drinking area at The Sheep and Penguin will need 
to be illuminated which could impact on all the bedrooms and living 
spaces at the back of our row of terraces, not only  disturbing the 
circadian rhythmns of human beings, but also the community of bats 
and wildlife in the adjacent copse. 
 

 
 
Suggested conditions that could 
be added to the licence to 
remedy your representation, or 
other suggestions you would 
like the Licensing Sub 
Committee to take into account 

Please could you reconsider the hours during which drinking is 
permitted in the Sheep and Penguin’s outside area.  I would like to 
see this brought into line with Weatherspoons, which, as I mentioned 
above, is less embedded in a residential area. 
 
Please could you also place restrictions on the lighting of the rear of 
the pub so that nearby sleepers in the adjacent houses are not 
disturbed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Generally if there is to be hearing to determine the premises licence (or club premises 
certificate) application, the Councillors will only be able to consider matters that have been 
previously disclosed.  No new evidence can be introduced at the hearing.  It is therefore 
imperative that you detail all matters that you wish to be considered on this initial representation.  
(Please attach additional sheets if necessary). 
 
If you do make a representation you will be expected to attend the Licensing Sub Committee 
and any subsequent appeal proceeding. 

Page 59



 
All representations in their entirety, including your name and address, will be disclosed to the 
applicant for the premises licence. 
 
Signed: Antoinette Jordan    Date:   April 29th 2023 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets to: The Licensing Department, Mendip District 
Council, Cannards Grave Road, Shepton Mallet. BA4 5BT. Or email to licensing@mendip.gov.uk 
This form must be returned within the Statutory Period, which is generally 28 days from the date the 
notice was displayed on the premises or the date specified in the Public Notice in the newspaper.  
Please contact the Licensing Department to confirm this date. 

Page 60



1

Phil Wake

From: CHcase
Sent: 02 May 2023 09:20
To: Phil Wake
Subject: FW: Grant of a premises licence - Sheep and Penguin, Wells

Importance: High

 
 
Kind regards 
 
Charlene Hunt  
Case Officer and Service Support  
Somerset Council  
Contact Number 0300 123 2224  
 

     M    m      m  
m

 
 

From:   
Sent: 30 April 2023 21:26 
Cc: Licensing Mendip <licensing@mendip.gov.uk> 
Subject: Grant of a premises licence - Sheep and Penguin, Wells 
Importance: High 
 

 

 
 

 
28th April 2023 
 
The Licensing Department 
Mendip District Council  
Cannards Grave 
Shepton Mallet 
Somerset 
BA4 5BT 
 
Dear Sir/Madam  
 
Re: Sheep & Penguin Ltd, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ 
 

Page 61



2

We were unfortunate to be living here when the Mermaid was still open.  We had to sleep in the back of our 
house every Friday and Saturday night because of the breach of the peace coming from the pub.  We had 
incidents of vomit up our door, beer glasses left on our window sills and screaming and fighting in the middle 
of the road was common place.   
 
Whilst we wish the Sheep and Penguin good luck and we will of course support them, we do not want to 
return to those old days – it was horrendous.   
 
We appreciate the alcohol licensing committee will be issuing a licence but we ask you, please, to consider 
carefully the effect the times of that licence will have on the surrounding residents.  If we stand in our garden 
the back of the site is within a close distance.  To give you an idea, when the workmen were building the site it 
was very easy to hear anyone’s conversation – it is that close as it wraps around the back.  
 
Wetherspoon’s licence allows them to serve alcohol outside up to 7pm at the front which is the nearest point 
to residential houses – that is further away than the Sheep and Penguin is to residential houses here.  
 
We would ask you to consider our right to peaceful enjoyment of our home and therefore stick to this 
precedent.  
 
Yours faithfully 
 
Brian and Jayne Doutch 
 
Mr and Mrs Doutch  
 

Page 62


	Agenda
	 Public Guidance Notes contained in Agenda Annexe
	 Click here to join the online meeting
	3 Procedure to be followed when considering Licensing Applications under the Licensing Act 2003
	5 Objection Notice received in respect of an application for a premises licence for The Sheep & Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ
	tem 05 The Sheep and Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ Appendix 1 - Application for Grant
	tem 05 The Sheep and Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ Appendix 2 - Plan of Premises
	tem 05 The Sheep and Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ Appendix 3 - Avon and Somerset Constabulary
	tem 05 The Sheep and Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ  Appendix 4 - Rosalynde Marshall
	tem 05 The Sheep and Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ Appendix 5 - Ina Cole
	tem 05 The Sheep and Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ Appendix 6 - John Devane
	tem 05 The Sheep and Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ Appendix 7 - Antoinette Jordan
	tem 05 The Sheep and Penguin, 1-2 Tucker Street, Wells, BA5 2DZ  Appendix 8 - Brian and Jayne Doutch




